
Planning & Zoning Commission

CITY OF McKINNEY, TEXAS

Agenda

Council Chambers

222 N. Tennessee Street

McKinney, TX  75069

6:00 PMTuesday, May 22, 2018

PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 551.002, A QUORUM 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL MAY BE PRESENT.  NO CITY COUNCIL ACTION WILL 

BE TAKEN.

CALL TO ORDER

CONSENT ITEMS

This portion of the agenda consists of non-controversial or "housekeeping" items required by 

law.  Items may be considered individually by any Commission member making such 

request prior to a motion and vote on the Consent items.

18-450 Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission Regular 

Meeting of May 8, 2018

MinutesAttachments:

18-0129CVP Consider/Discuss/Act on a Conveyance Plat for Lots 4R and 

5, Block A, of the B and L Cox Addition, Located 

Approximately 700 Feet East of Lake Forest Drive and on the 

North Side of U.S. Highway 380 (University Drive)

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

Letter of Intent

Proposed Conveyance Plat

Attachments:

18-0090PF Consider/Discuss/Act on a Preliminary-Final Plat for Lot 2R1, 

Block A, of the CVS Ridge Addition, Located Approximately 

237 Feet South of U.S. Highway 380 (University Drive) and 

on the East Side of Ridge Road

Page 1 CITY OF McKINNEY, TEXAS Printed on 5/18/2018

1

http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=15665
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0c8dc7e5-a6e1-436a-abee-1ee5a1599d80.pdf
http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=15662
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=64a2d157-e78b-4804-92ed-5a64a53936d7.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=94a596b5-3422-4ef7-93d0-57999a1784b8.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=46c90938-1f85-4cb7-839e-364320d162d7.pdf
http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=15661


May 22, 2018Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda

Standard Conditions Checklist

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

Letter of Intent

Proposed Preliminary-Final Plat

Attachments:

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS

17-283SP2 Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a Site 

Plan for Auto Repair and Sales (Da Shang Auto Sales and 

Repair), Located at the Northeast Corner of State Highway 5 

(McDonald Street) and McMakin Street

Standard Conditions Checklist

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

Letter of Intent

Proposed Site Plan

Proposed Landscape Plan

TXDOT Acquisition Exhibit

Presentation

Attachments:

18-0040Z Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a 

Request to Rezone the Subject Property from "C" - Planned 

Center District, "RG-18" - General Residence District and 

"CC" - Corridor Commercial Overlay District to "PD" - 

Planned Development District and "CC" - Corridor 

Commercial Overlay District, Generally to Allow Commercial 

and Multi-Family Residential Uses (Millennium Place), 

Located Approximately 830 Feet West of Hardin Boulevard 

and on the North Side of U.S. Highway 380 (University Drive) 

(REQUEST TO BE TABLED)

Location Map and Aerial ExhibitAttachments:

18-0052FR Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a 

Façade Appeal for a Retail Building (380 and Ridge Retail 

Building), Located Approximately 300 Feet East of Ridge Rd 

and on the South Side of U.S. Highway 380 (University 

Drive) (REQUEST TO BE TABLED)

Page 2 CITY OF McKINNEY, TEXAS Printed on 5/18/2018

2

http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=675c293d-223c-4ec8-8abf-8c94841989f6.doc
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0053adb4-f911-48c1-b4a0-3b99bc888735.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7e7e3819-7871-4c28-bc7d-4687847fced6.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d61ca566-f7f2-4216-87a3-37e7cca6ce4c.pdf
http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=15667
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c94d4f4d-0951-4f7d-a52f-2374d301872c.doc
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a8329fb6-c430-4ee6-bf1d-b5d0e66c33a0.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=77d0a5b8-e47f-4f04-9316-47d87aa2f324.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fb0241bd-6459-4f89-a53d-1bdf96ea1d3c.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3abe222f-9713-4592-86d4-9028939846bd.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7d3f87a3-1666-4119-8cda-de606b100f7b.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24b2cc0f-a430-41ec-a658-dcfbae19c389.pdf
http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=15666
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5267ff51-efaf-4868-8481-acde3db4a803.pdf
http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=15663


May 22, 2018Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda

Location Map and Aerial ExhibitAttachments:

18-0003SUP Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a 

Specific Use Permit Request for a Restaurant with 

Drive-Through Window (Shops at Lake Forest), Located 

Approximately 300 Feet West of Lake Forest Drive and on 

the South Side of Collin McKinney Parkway

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

Letter of Intent

Proposed SUP Exhibit

Presentation

Attachments:

18-006M Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the 

Semiannual Report with Respect to the Progress of the 

Capital Improvements Plan for Roadway and Utility Impact 

Fees

Project List Mid-Year 2018

Presentation

Attachments:

COMMISSION AND STAFF COMMENTS

Comments relating to items of public interest such as staff recognition, development 

trends, the status of special Planning Department projects, and other relevant 

information.

ADJOURN

Page 3 CITY OF McKINNEY, TEXAS Printed on 5/18/2018

3

http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d22e51bd-5dc0-414b-80b4-5150e973b344.pdf
http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=15659
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=65609788-afd0-470b-ac49-5f4ae98be879.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b37901b3-5fb5-4c2e-a9a3-9e865b97a29d.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8273f4e7-5795-4838-b7f5-e290fa74f78f.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a53d1367-e97f-41b7-bdf6-2c7e373d779c.pdf
http://mckinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=15664
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bacb42e1-eb99-4c7d-96b9-f223e6895d4f.pdf
http://McKinney.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5a3516b1-ec88-4c45-88ae-df5651dc3402.pdf


May 22, 2018Planning & Zoning Commission Agenda

Posted in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, on the 18th day 

of May, 2018 at or before 5:00 p.m.

                                        ___________________________

                                        Sandy Hart, TRMC, MMC

                                        City Secretary

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, it is the policy of the City of 

McKinney to offer its public programs, services, and meetings in a manner that is 

readily accessible to everyone, including individuals with disabilities.  If you are a 

person with a disability and require information or materials in an appropriate 

alternative format; or if you require any other accommodation, please contact the ADA 

Coordinator at least 48 hours in advance of the event.  Phone 972-547-2694 or email 

contact-adacompliance@mckinneytexas.org.  Advance notification within this guideline 

will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility.  ADA 

grievances may also be directed to the ADA Coordinator or filed online at 

http://www.mckinneytexas.org/ada.

Page 4 CITY OF McKINNEY, TEXAS Printed on 5/18/2018

4



18-450

Title: Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting of May 8, 2018

Minutes

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:    

5



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

MAY 8, 2018 
 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of McKinney, Texas met in 

regular session in the Council Chambers, 222 N. Tennessee Street, McKinney, Texas, 

on Tuesday, May 8, 2018 at 6:00 p.m.  

City Council Present:  Charlie Philips 

Commission Members Present:  Chairman Bill Cox, Vice-Chairman Brian Mantzey, 

Janet Cobbel, Deanna Kuykendall, Cam McCall, Mark McReynolds, and Pamela Smith 

Staff Present: Director of Planning Brian Lockley, Planning Manager Samantha 

Pickett, Planners Danielle Quintanilla and David Soto, and Administrative Assistant Terri 

Ramey 

There were approximately 15 guests present. 

Chairman Cox called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. after determining a quorum 

was present. 

The Commission unanimously approved the motion by Commission Member 

Cobbel, seconded by Commission Member McCall, to approve the following three 

Consent items, with a vote of 7-0-0.  

18-407  Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting of April 24, 2018 

 

17-258PF  Consider/Discuss/Act on a Preliminary-Final Plat for 75 
Single Family Residential Lots and 2 Common Areas 
(Barcelona Phase III), Located Approximately 1,200 
Feet West of McKinney Ranch Parkway and on the 
South Side of Silverado Trail 

 

18-0032SP  Consider/Discuss/Act on a Site Plan for an Auto Repair 
Facility (Collin County Customs), Located 
Approximately 100 Feet South of Power House Drive 
and on the East Side of Mercury Circle 

 
END OF CONSENT 

Chairman Cox continued the meeting with the Regular Agenda Items and Public 

Hearings on the agenda.   

18-0051Z2  Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a 
Request to Rezone the Subject Property from "PD" - 
Planned Development District to "SF7.2" - Single 
Family Residential District, Located Approximately 975 
Feet South of Gray Branch Road and on the East Side 
of Ridge Road 

6



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 2 
 

 
 

 

Ms. Danielle Quintanilla, Planner I for the City of McKinney, explained the 

proposed rezoning request.  She stated that the applicant is requesting to rezone 

approximately 17 acres of land from “PD” – Planned Development District to “SF7.2” – 

Single Family Residential District.  Ms. Quintanilla stated that this case was tabled 

indefinitely at the April 10, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  She stated 

that since that meeting the applicant has revised the rezoning request from “SF5” – Single 

Family Residential District to “SF7.2” – Single Family Residential District, which requires 

a minimum 7,200 square foot lot.  Ms. Quintanilla stated that the applicant has also 

provided an information only concept plan to depict how the property may develop.  She 

stated that the current and proposed zonings are generally for single family detached 

residential uses; however, the current “PD” – Planned Development District requires the 

property to develop in accordance with a layout exhibit.  She stated that the applicant is 

requesting to rezone the subject property to remove the layout and adopt a straight zoning 

district of “SF7.2” – Single Family Residential District.  Ms. Quintanilla stated that Staff is 

of the professional opinion that the proposed rezoning request will increase the 

development potential of the property and complement the surrounding land uses.  She 

stated that Staff recommends approval of the proposed rezoning request and offered to 

answer questions. 

Vice-Chairman Mantzey asked for clarification of the differences between the 

average size lots and minimum lot sizes from the previous rezoning request to the 

proposed rezoning request.  Ms. Quintanilla stated that the previously requested “SF5” – 

Single Family Residential District had a minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet with a mean 

and median of 7,200 square feet.  She stated that the proposed “SF7.2” – Single Family 

Residential District has a minimum lot size of 7,200 square feet and does not include a 

mean and median lot size.   

Vice-Chairman Mantzey wanted to verify that this is only a concept plan and not a 

site plan.  He asked if there is a cap to the number of lots that could be developed on the 

subject property as long as they meet the 7,200 square foot lot size.  Ms. Quintanilla 

stated that there would be a cap based on the 3.2 units per acre density on the proposed 

subject property.  She stated that with 17.63 gross acres there could be a maximum of 

56 lots.  Vice-Chairman Mantzey asked if the current exhibit showed 49 lots.  Ms. 
7



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 3 
 

 
 

 

Quintanilla stated that the information only concept plan does show 49 lots.  She stated 

that the current zoning on the property has a maximum density of 53 lots.  Chairman Cox 

wanted to clarify that the drawing tied to the current zoning shows a maximum of 42 lots.  

Ms. Quintanilla stated that was correct.  Ms. Samantha Pickett, Planning Manager for the 

City of McKinney, stated that since it was generally conforming to the layout exhibit that 

they could have the ability to develop up to 53 lots as long as it generally matched the 

exhibit. 

Vice-Chairman Mantzey asked if the Commission could decide to limit the number 

of lots and apply it to the requested zoning for the subject property.  Ms. Pickett stated 

that would create the need for a “PD” – Planned Development District.   

Mr. Bob Roeder, Abernathy, Roeder, Boyd & Hullett, P.C., 1700 Redbud Blvd. 

McKinney, TX, explained the proposed rezoning request and the revision since the 

previous application.  He stated that he was not present at the April 10, 2018 meeting; 

however, he had read the minutes.  Mr. Roeder stated that the proposed rezoning request 

meets the spirit and intent of the current “PD” – Planned Development District for the 

subject property.  He stated that if they could stipulate the maximum number of lots to be 

49 with the straight zoning district then they would.  Mr. Roeder stated that there are 

several regulations in the City’s ordinance that conflict with the each other on how to plat 

a property when an erosion hazard setback is involved and gave examples.  Mr. Roeder 

briefly discussed the current zoning and lot sizes allowed on the subject property.  He 

stated that when the erosion hazard setback is the rear yard setback, then the maximum 

number of lots they could have would be 49 lots.  Mr. Roeder stated that each lot would 

be larger than 7,200 square feet.  He stated that the layout associated with the current 

zoning on the property was done at a high level without any engineering being done at 

that time; therefore, some of the roads and lot locations do not make sense.  Mr. Roeder 

stated that the developer’s intent is to make this a gated subdivision.  He stated that City 

Staff prefers to rezone to straight zoning instead of a “PD” – Planned Development 

District, which can get complicated years later.  Mr. Roeder stated that the properties 

along the creek will appear larger due to the erosion hazard setback.  He requested a 

favorable recommendation of the proposed rezoning request and offered to answer 

questions.  There were none. 
8



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 4 
 

 
 

 

Mr. Mike Buchanan, 900 Gray Branch Road, McKinney, TX, stated that this was 

part of a master plan that is zoned “RS84” - Single Family Residential District and “RS120” 

- Single Family Residential District.  He stated that Emerald Heights was originally part of 

this parcel and has the same issues as the subject property.  Mr. Buchanan stated that 

they were accountable to the original zoning.  He requested consistency within the master 

plan. 

Mr. Michael Brown, 5800 Creekside Court, McKinney, TX, stated that the 

developer is from out of town and wants to maximize the number of lots on the property.  

He stated that the applicant got with City Staff to discuss revisions to the request.  Mr. 

Brown stated that they did not reach out to any of the surrounding property owners to 

discuss the proposed project.  He stated that Emerald Heights, Stonebridge Estates, 

Altamura Estates, Waterbury, Kings Lake, and Isleworth have larger lot sizes along their 

creeks.  Mr. Brown stated that Wynn Ridge and Saddlehorn Creek subdivisions were 

across the street from the subject property and have very nice houses packed on smaller 

lots.  He expressed concerns about noise issues from the additional smaller lots along 

the creek on the subject property.  Mr. Brown requested that the proposed rezoning 

request be denied.  He stated that he would like to keep the current zoning with the lots 

along the creek being a minimum of 12,000 square feet and the rest of the lots being a 

minimum of 8,400 square feet.   

Ms. Peggy Baird, 409 Creekside Drive, McKinney, TX, concurred with Mr. 

Buchanan and Mr. Brown’s comments.  She stated that she would like to see the lots 

along the creek mirror the lots along the creek in the Emerald Heights subdivision.  Ms. 

Baird expressed concerns about trees that might be removed along the creek that blocks 

a lot of noise.  She stated that she would have loved to have discussed the plans for this 

property with the developer after the April 10, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission 

meeting. 

The following resident turned in a speaker’s card in opposition to the proposed 

rezoning request; however, did not wish to speak during the meeting. 

 Ms. Jennifer Buchanan, 900 Gray Branch Road, McKinney, TX 

9



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 5 
 

 
 

 

On a motion by Commission Member McReynolds, seconded by Commission 

Member McCall, the Commission unanimously voted to close the public hearing, with a 

vote of 7-0-0. 

Commission Member Cobbel asked what size lots were located along the creek to 

the north of the subject property.  Ms. Pickett stated that they appear to be approximately 

50 – 60 feet wide and 160 – 300 feet in depth.  Commission Member Cobbel asked for 

the square footage along the creek in the adjacent subdivision.  She also stated that the 

lots appear to range in size.  Ms. Pickett gave the example of an 80’ x 160’ lot being 

12,800 square feet.   

Commission Member Smith stated that the previous letters of opposition from the 

April 10, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting were asking for a minimum of 

7,200 square foot lot sizes for the subject property.  She stated that she was glad to see 

that the applicant revised the request to include that minimum lot size.  Commission 

Member Smith stated that there was an expectation that the developer would 

communicate with the surrounding property owners after the previous meeting; however, 

that did not happen.  She stated that there is still strong opposition from the neighboring 

residents to the proposed rezoning request.  Commission Member Smith stated that she 

feels that we would be doing a disservice to the neighboring residents if we approve the 

rezoning request in light of their objections and the value and price point of the 

surrounding neighborhood.  She stated that she would feel better if the applicant 

communicated their plans with the neighboring residents, even if the same proposal 

comes back before the Commission.   

Commission Member McReynolds asked if the proposed lot sizes were larger 

compared to the previous request.  Ms. Pickett stated that the minimum lot sizes were 

possible larger.  Commission Member McReynolds stated that it appears that they took 

some advice from the first meeting.   

Commission Member Cobbel stated that the public had the opportunity to speak 

at the April 10, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  She stated that the 

developer appears to have taken their comments under advisement. 

Commission Member McReynolds stated that there seems to have been some 

thought put into the concept plan, included in the Staff Report for informational purposes 
10



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 6 
 

 
 

 

only, regarding engineering, setbacks, roads, and connectivity.  He stated that he 

understands what Mr. Roeder was saying about the lots along the creek appearing larger 

than what they actual would be due to the erosion control setbacks.  Commission Member 

McReynolds stated that he was in support of the proposed rezoning request. 

Vice-Chairman Mantzey stated that at the last meeting he was thoroughly opposed 

to the minimum lot size being 5,000 square feet, which he did not feel would meet the 

intent of the current “PD” – Planned Development District.  He stated that it is unfortunate 

that we move away from “PD” – Planned Development Districts for cases on unique 

pieces of land.  Vice-Chairman Mantzey stated that the applicant did take into account 

the references of getting to the larger minimum lot size overall.  He stated that it is 

unfortunate that they did not meet with the surrounding property owners.  Vice-Chairman 

Mantzey stated that even though the proposed rezoning request is not perfect, it is within 

range of the original number of lots for that area and works with the layout of the land.  

He stated that he hopes the overall lots for the development stays under 50 total lots.  

Vice-Chairman Mantzey stated that he would be in support of the request since it has a 

minimum of 7,200 square feet per lot.   

Chairman Cox asked for clarification on the major differences from the previous 

request and the proposed rezoning request.  Mr. Roeder stated that they eliminated the 

opportunity to have a lot size less than 7,200 square feet.  He stated that they took into 

account the erosion hazard setback for the lots along the creek.  Mr. Roeder stated that 

he did speak with Mr. Mike Buchanan about this request; however, he did not speak with 

the other surrounding property owners.  He stated that he has not heard anything new 

that was not in the April 10, 2018 Planning and Zoning Commission minutes.  Mr. Roeder 

stated that he has not seen any harm being shown by any of the complainants.   

Chairman Cox and Commission Member McCall concurred with the other 

Commission Member’s comments.   

Chairman Cox stated that he applauds the applicant for bringing up the minimum 

lot size up significantly.  He stated that he would be in support of the proposed rezoning 

request. 

On a motion by Commission Member Cobbel, seconded by Commission Member 

McReynolds, the Commission voted to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning 
11



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 7 
 

 
 

 

request as recommended by Staff, with a vote of 6-1-0.  Commission Member Smith voted 

against the motion. 

Chairman Cox stated that the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 

Commission will be forwarded to the City Council meeting on June 5, 2018. 

18-0046FR  Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a 
Facade Plan Appeal for Auto Repair Facility (Collin 
County Customs), Located Approximately 100 Feet 
South of Power House Drive and on the East Side of 
Mercury Circle 

 
Mr. David Soto, Planner I for the City of McKinney, explained the proposed facade 

plan appeal.  He stated that the applicant was requesting a facade plan appeal for an 

auto repair facility (Collin County Customs) due to the proposed elevations not conforming 

to the requirements of the City’s Architectural Standards for non-residential uses in non-

industrial districts.  Mr. Soto stated that typically facade plans can be approved by Staff; 

however, the applicant is requesting approval of a facade plan appeal which must be 

considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  He stated that the applicant has 

submitted the associated site plan (18-0032SP), which was considered during the 

Consent items during this meeting.  Mr. Soto stated that the purpose of the architectural 

standards is to set minimum standards for the appearance of non-residential and 

corresponding site elements, which are recognized as enhancing property values and are 

in the interest of the general welfare for McKinney.  He stated that staff received one call 

expressing concerns regarding this request.  Mr. Soto stated that the applicant is 

requesting six variances to the facade plan.   

Mr. Soto stated that Section 146-139 (Architectural and Site Standards) of the 

Zoning Ordinance states that commercial uses following the standard of a non-residential 

in non-industrial districts shall have at least 50% masonry finishing materials on each 

elevation.  He explained that masonry is defined as brick or stone.  Mr. Soto stated that 

the applicant is requesting to waive all masonry requirements.  He stated that the 

applicant is proposing a combination of concrete masonry unit (CMU) block, exterior 

insulation and finish system (EFIS), and metal as the materials.  Mr. Soto stated that a 

majority of metal is being proposed on three of the four facades.  He stated that although 

the proposed development is in an area primarily designed for industrial uses, auto repair 

facilities and offices are considered commercial uses, and can be located within both 

12



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 8 
 

 
 

 

commercially and industrially zoned areas of the city.  Mr. Soto stated that both proposed 

buildings were requested to have a masonry component along with the other elements.  

He stated that many of the surrounding buildings have either provided masonry or have 

forgone metal entirely.  Mr. Soto stated that given the surrounding area and proposed 

uses, Staff is of the opinion that the lack of masonry may not complement the existing 

and future development of the area, and that masonry material could be used to achieve 

a similar look.  He stated that Staff recommends denial of this proposed variance request.   

Mr. Soto stated that for the second variance, the Zoning Ordinance states that the 

minimum elevations that are 50’ or longer in horizontal length shall be interrupted by at 

least two offsets (projection or recess).  He stated that while the applicant has provided 

the required offsets on the west elevation that faces the public right-of-way.  Mr. Soto 

stated that the north, south, and east elevations do not feature the required offsets.  He 

stated that offsets provide an aesthetic articulation for otherwise flat building elevations 

by creating visual interest.  Mr. Soto stated that it is Staff’s professional opinion that this 

building can maintain a unique identity, while still incorporating similar architectural 

elements, such as offsets, in order to provide visual interest.  He stated that Staff 

recommends denial of the second proposed variance request.   

Mr. Soto stated that for the third variance, the Zoning Ordinance states that the 

windows shall appear as holes that are punched through walls rather than an appendage 

to the wall.  He stated that this requirement is to drawn the eye to the window by providing 

depth and shadow, adding to the visual interest of the facade.  Mr. Soto stated that the 

applicant is proposing windows that are relatively flush with the veneer (1” deep).  He 

stated that although this is intended to create a modern look, it is Staff’s professional 

opinion that the increased depth and emphasis on the windows would create more visual 

interest.  Mr. Soto stated that Staff recommends denial of the third proposed variance 

request. 

Mr. Soto stated that for the fourth variance, the Zoning Ordinance states that the 

parapet roof lines shall feature a well-defined cornice treatment or another similar 

architectural element to visually cap each building elevation.  He stated that this 

requirement is to provide depth and contrast to highlight the roofline of the building.  Mr. 

Soto stated that the applicant is proposing a 6” cap; however, the color is similar to the 
13



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 9 
 

 
 

 

remainder of the building causing it to blend in rather than contrast.  He stated that Staff 

recommends denial of the fourth variance request. 

Mr. Soto stated that for the fifth and sixth variances, the Zoning Ordinance states 

that the buildings shall provide an additional feature in order to create a visual interest for 

the building.  He stated that the additional feature that the applicant selected is “The 

building features has at least two distinctly different significant architectural design 

concepts that are not already mandated by these requirements which add to the visual 

interest of the building”.  Mr. Soto stated that the applicant is proposing to utilize a single 

architectural element, a graphic design featuring a tachometer on the north and west 

elevation of the auto repair facility and a speedometer on the north and west of the office 

building.  He stated that it is Staff’s professional opinion that this architectural element, 

while unique in design, only counts as one distinct design concept.  Mr. Soto stated that 

one additional unique design concept would need to be provided in order to meet this 

requirement.  He stated that Staff recommends denial of the proposed variance request.  

Mr. Soto offered to answer questions. 

Commission Member Smith asked Mr. Soto to elaborate on the concerns from the 

caller.  Mr. Soto stated that they expressed concerns on how the building would look 

compared to the surrounding buildings that mostly has some masonry on the facade that 

faces the right-of-way.   

Commission Member Cobbel asked if Staff would be happier if the applicant 

provided some masonry on the facade facing the right-of-way or was it a combination of 

all of the variances that Staff opposes.  Mr. Soto stated that if they provide some masonry 

on the exterior that it would fit in with the existing buildings in the area.  He also stated 

that Staff has concerns about all six variances requested. 

Mr. Nick Mourton, 7850 Collin McKinney Parkway, McKinney, TX, explained the 

proposed facade plan appeal.  He stated that if this was considered an industrial use, 

then EFIS and CMU would both be considered an appropriate material for the facade.  

Mr. Mourton stated that Collin County Customs provides custom restoration and upgrades 

to classic and high value vehicles.  He stated that they currently operate at 192 Industrial 

Boulevard, which is a similar zoned district as to the proposed new location.  Mr. Mourton 

stated that they purchased a property in the Power House Industrial Park with the intent 
14



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 10 
 

 
 

 

to relocate there.  He stated that there are several other related businesses in this 

development.  Mr. Mourton stated that during a predevelopment meeting in September 

2017 they learned that they would not be considered an industrial or manufacturing use.  

He stated that since they are being considered a commercial use it triggered the 

Architectural Standards.  Mr. Mourton stated that it does not seem logical to them that 

this seemly compatible business would be subjected to an undue burden.  He stated that 

he could not find the definition of industrial or commercial in the Zoning Ordinance, which 

he felt makes it difficult to determine if they are an industrial or commercial use.  Mr. 

Mourton stated that Staff explained that the Schedule of Uses has a column for residential 

uses, another column for industrial uses, and that any uses not listed under one of them 

would by default be a commercial use.  He stated that they would fall under that category, 

since their use did not fall under the allowed uses in either of those categories.  Mr. 

Mourton stated that they feel strongly that the proposed development and use is very 

compatible with the neighboring businesses.  He stated that none of the surround 

buildings has anywhere near these Architectural Standards that they are being asked to 

follow.  Mr. Mourton distributed photographs of the surrounding buildings.  He felt that the 

proposed development would be an upgrade to the neighborhood compared to the 

product that is existing developments near there.  Mr. Mourton asked for approval of the 

facade plan with the variances that they requested and offered to answer questions.  He 

stated that his architect was also available to answer questions.     

Commission Member Smith asked for clarification on what Mr. Mourton considered 

an undue burden.  Mr. Mourton considers the Architectural Standards being imposed for 

a commercial use is an undue burden.  He stated that he considers the proposed use to 

be industrial instead of commercial.  Mr. Mourton felt that the code was unclear on what 

uses were considered commercial, since it was not specifically specified in the Schedule 

of Uses.  

Commission Member McReynolds asked the architect to discuss the proposed 

development.  Mr. Kent Holcomb, KH Architects, 301 Flat Rock Road, Azle, TX, stated 

that they have a unique customer that wanted something streamlined, modern, and 

contemporary.  He stated that they wanted a lot of gray tones and did not want to see a 

lot of color.  Mr. Holcomb stated that for the proposed graphics they propose to use an 
15



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 11 
 

 
 

 

almost white EFIS material with recessed depressions for the graphics.  He stated that to 

go along with that on the front and partially around the edges they proposed to use a 

smooth face CMU.  Commission Member McReynolds asked if it would have an 

appearance of a cast stone instead of a rough surface.  Mr. Holcomb said yes.  He stated 

that if they could have afforded limestone, they might have used it instead.  Mr. Holcomb 

stated that they upgraded the other three sides with a charcoal colored 7.2 deep ribbed 

panel that costs substantially more than vertical R panels which are on typical metal 

buildings.  He stated that the proposed metal panels would have more of a shadow effect 

to it.    

Chairman Cox stated that after reading the letter of intent that included what the 

business does it sounded like something similar to an industrial use to him.  Mr. Mourton 

stated that they were surprised that City Staff did not consider them an industrial use.  Mr. 

Holcomb gave an example of Christian Brothers Automotive being a commercial 

enterprise that needs to be on a commercial street for drive by traffic for customers to 

stop by to get their automobile repaired.  He stated that the proposed use is not the typical 

automobile repair business and that was why they chose an industrial site.  Mr. Holcomb 

compared the business to more of a manufacturing facility. 

Chairman Cox opened the public hearing and called for comments.  There being 

none, on a motion by Vice-Chairman Mantzey, seconded by Commission Member 

McReynolds, the Commission unanimously voted to close the public hearing, with a vote 

of 7-0-0. 

Commission Member McReynolds gave an example of how Cracker Barrel 

restaurant’s facades invoke a feeling of a country general store.  He stated that they would 

not have the same effect if the exterior was brick and/or stone with other architectural 

elements that might typically be required on commercial buildings in McKinney.  

Commission Member McReynolds stated that when you look at the proposed buildings 

that you think mechanics.  He felt the design was significant and distinct for McKinney.   

Commission Member McReynolds stated that the proposed design was appropriate for 

the industrial area.  He also stated that it was important to have a standard in the city.  

Commission Member McReynolds stated that he was in favor of the proposed facade 

plan. 
16



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 12 
 

 
 

 

Commission Member Cobbel concurred with Commission Member McReynolds 

comments.  She stated that it was a new innovation and look coming to McKinney.  

Commission Member Cobbel stated that she appreciated Staff’s opinions on this 

submittal. 

Commission Member Kuykendall concurred with Commission Members 

McReynolds and Cobbel.  She stated that it was a unique design. 

Commission Member Smith stated that she is not typically in support of a long list 

of variance requests.  She stated that this is an industrial area and the proposed use 

would be appropriate there.  Commission Member Smith stated that she understands 

Staff’s view point.    

On a motion by Commission Member Cobble, seconded by Commission Member 

McReynolds, the Commission unanimously voted to approve the facade plan appeal as 

requested by the applicant, with a vote of 7-0-0.   

 Chairman Cox stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission was the final 

approval authority for this facade plan appeal. 

18-0034SP  Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a 
Site Plan for an Elementary School (Prosper 
Independent School District No. 10), Located 
Approximately 1,275 Feet South Of Virginia Parkway 
and Approximately 600 Feet West of Independence 
Parkway 

 
Mr. David Soto, Planner I for the City of McKinney, explained the proposed site 

plan request.  He stated that the applicant is proposing to construct an elementary school 

on 10.8 acres.  Mr. Soto stated that site plans can typically be approved by Staff; however, 

the applicant is requesting approval of an alternate screening device to screen the 

proposed elementary school from the adjacent residential uses located northeast of the 

subject property.  He stated that per Section 146-132 (Fences, Walls, and Screening 

Requirements) of the Zoning Ordinance, screening devices shall be placed along any 

property line or district boundary between single family residential uses and non-

residential uses.  Mr. Soto stated that since the proposed elementary school is adjacent 

to single family residential uses, the applicant is required to screen the proposed 

development on the northeast side of the property with either an approved screening 

device or an alternate screening device with approval of the Planning and Zoning 

17



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2018 
PAGE 13 
 

 
 

 

Commission.  He stated that the applicant is seeking approval of an alternate screening 

device, consisting of 87 Juniper Spartan trees (spaced approximately 4’ 6” on center and 

to be 6’ tall at the time of planting), to screen the non-residential property from the single 

family residential properties to the northeast.  Mr. Soto stated that these trees will be 

provided in conjunction with the canopy trees required, as well as the existing residential 

wood fence along the rear property lines of the residential properties.  He stated that given 

that the existing wood fence, required trees, and multiple easements along the property 

line, it is Staff’s professional opinion that the proposed alternate screening device will 

serve as adequate screening between the elementary school and the adjacent single 

family residential uses.  Mr. Soto stated that Staff recommends approval of the applicant’s 

request and offered to answer questions.  There were none. 

Mr. Shawn Rockenbaugh, TNP, Inc., 825 Watters Creek Boulevard, Allen, TX, 

briefly explained the proposed site plan request.  He stated that there are a number of 

utilities along the north side of the property and adjacent to the single family residential 

uses.  Mr. Rockenbaugh stated that they had worked with CoServe regarding the electric 

lines in this location.  He stated that CoServe was against installing any type of masonry 

or stone screening in this area that would impact their ability to access their lines.  Mr. 

Rockenbaugh stated that CoServe agreed to the installation of a living screen in this area.   

Chairman Cox opened the public hearing and called for comments.  There being 

none, on a motion by Vice-Chairman Mantzey, seconded by Commission Member 

McCall, the Commission unanimously voted to close the public hearing and approve the 

proposed site plan as conditioned in the Staff Report, with a vote of 7-0-0.  

END OF CONSENT 

Chairman Cox thanked Staff for their hard work. 

There being no further business, Chairman Cox declared the meeting adjourned 

at 7:10 p.m.        

 
 

                                                               
           

    ________________________________ 

        BILL COX 
        Chairman                                                         

18



18-0129CVP

Title: Consider/Discuss/Act on a Conveyance Plat for Lots 4R and 5, Block A, of the B 

and L Cox Addition, Located Approximately 700 Feet East of Lake Forest Drive 

and on the North Side of U.S. Highway 380 (University Drive)

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

Letter of Intent

Proposed Conveyance Plat

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:    

19



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 515 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 S
:\M

CK
GI

S\
No

tifi
ca

tio
n\D

ev
_S

erv
ice

s_
No

tifi
ca

tio
n_

Ma
p.m

xd

SL
AL

OM

LA
KE

 FO
RE

ST

BRIDGEPORT

HIG
HR

ID
GE

RUSTIC RIDGE CA
ST

LE
RI

DG
E

FOX RIDGE

JO
CE

LY
N

MOUNTAIN RIDGE

UNIVERSITY

MEA
DO

W
RA

NC
H

TE
RR

Y

BROOKRIDGE

PD

PD

PD

PD O-1

PD

PD

C

C

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

BG

AG

AG
AG

PD

Source: City of McKinney GIS
Date: 5/9/2018 

0 260 520
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Location Map
18-0129CVP

20



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 515 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 S
:\M

CK
GI

S\
No

tifi
ca

tio
n\D

ev
_S

erv
ice

s_
No

tifi
ca

tio
n_

Ma
p.m

xd

SL
AL

OM

LA
KE

 FO
RE

ST

BRIDGEPORT

HIG
HR

ID
GE

RUSTIC RIDGE CA
ST

LE
RI

DG
E

FOX RIDGE

JO
CE

LY
N

MOUNTAIN RIDGE

UNIVERSITY

MEA
DO

W
RA

NC
H

TE
RR

Y

BROOKRIDGE

PD

PD

PD

PD O-1

PD

PD

C

C

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

BG

AG

AG
AG

PD

Source: City of McKinney GIS
Date: 5/9/2018 

0 260 520
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Location Map
18-0129CVP

21





23



18-0090PF

Title: Consider/Discuss/Act on a Preliminary-Final Plat for Lot 2R1, Block A, of the 

CVS Ridge Addition, Located Approximately 237 Feet South of U.S. Highway 

380 (University Drive) and on the East Side of Ridge Road

Standard Conditions Checklist

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

Letter of Intent

Proposed Preliminary-Final Plat

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:    

24



Standard Conditions for Preliminary-Final Plat/Replat Approval Checklist

The conditions listed below marked with a “ ” need to be satisfied by the applicant, prior to issuance 
of a permit:

Submit a record plat or plats conforming to the approved preliminary-final plat, subject to review and 
approval by Staff.  For residential uses, the record plat(s) must be filed before a building permit is 
issued, and for non-residential uses, the record plat(s) must be approved before a permit is issued.

Approval of screening and buffering plans, including irrigation, in accordance with Section 142-106 of 
the Subdivision Ordinance, and as amended, by the Director of Planning, and approval of final 
screening and buffering plans, including irrigation, by the Director of Planning, by prior to installation of 
materials.

Approval of public improvement construction plans, including location of any required sidewalks, Hike 
and Bike Trails, and fire hydrants, by the City Engineer.

Approval of utility construction plans by the City Engineer.

Approval of grading and drainage plans by the City Engineer.

Approval of the proposed street names within this development by the City Engineer.

The applicant comply with the requirements of the Tree Preservation Ordinance and obtain any 
necessary tree permits within the time frames specified within the Ordinance, subject to review and 
approval by the City Arborist.

The conditions listed below marked with a “ ” need to be satisfied by the applicant, prior to filing a 
record plat for record:

Acceptance of all required public improvements by the City Engineer, unless otherwise specified within 
an approved facilities agreement.

The applicant provide any additional easements as determined necessary by the City Engineer.

Approval of annexation documentation, and filing thereof, incorporating the proposed development into 
the homeowners’ association for the proposed development, including the dedication of common areas, 
and it maintenance responsibilities, and be subject to review and approval by the City Attorney, and 
filed for record. (In accordance with Sec. 142-107 Common Areas & Homeowners Associations of the 
City’s Subdivision Regulations.)

The applicant satisfy park land dedication obligations, in accordance with Article VI of the Subdivision 
Ordinance, subject to review and approval by the Director of Parks and Recreation. (Due at time of 
building permit issuance)

Payment of median landscaping fees for medians within divided roadways, in lieu of the applicant 
landscaping and irrigating the medians, in the amount of $25.50 per linear foot for the distance parallel 
to the subject property. (Previously collected)

Prior to issuance of a building permit:

Payment of impact fees in accordance with Ordinances 2013-11-109 and 2013-12-118 (utilities) and 
2013-11-108 (roadway), or as specified within an approved facilities agreement or development
agreement.

25



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 536 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 Y:
\P

lan
nin

g\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

s\M
ap

Te
mp

lat
e.m

xd

PORT VALE

NE
WT

ON

UNIVERSITY

COUNTRY RIDGE
AU

BU
RN

 H
ILL

S

FALCON RIDGE

VALLEY VIEW

HIGIER
TANGLE RIDGE

CANYON CREST

BIN
NS

WIND SONG

GRAY BRANCH

RID
GE

KILDARE

MOSS CLIFF

HAWK HILL

CASTLE ROCK

C

O

C

PD

PD

AG

PD

PD

PD

BG

AG

SF5

C2

SF5

PD

0 270 540
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Location Map

18-0090PF 26



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 536 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 Y:
\P

lan
nin

g\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

s\M
ap

Te
mp

lat
e.m

xd

PORT VALE

NE
WT

ON

UNIVERSITY

COUNTRY RIDGE
AU

BU
RN

 H
ILL

S

FALCON RIDGE

VALLEY VIEW

HIGIER
TANGLE RIDGE

CANYON CREST

BIN
NS

WIND SONG

GRAY BRANCH

RID
GE

KILDARE

MOSS CLIFF

HAWK HILL

CASTLE ROCK

C

O

C

PD

PD

AG

PD

PD

PD

BG

AG

SF5

C2

SF5

PD

0 270 540
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Location Map

18-0090PF 27



May 8, 2018

City of McKinney
Planning Department
221 N. Tennessee St.
McKinney, Texas 75070

Attn:  Mr. Brian Lockley, Director of Planning

Dear Brian:

Please accept this letter as our request for a Preliminary-Final Plat for Lot 2R1 Block A,
CVS Ridge Addition. The property is located on the southeast corner of U.S. Highway 
380 (University Drive) and Ridge Road just behind the existing CVS store in McKinney, 
Texas. The Property is currently zoned “BG”- general business district and “CC”-
corridor commercial overlay district. This development will include the ground up 
development of a multi-family apartment complex that will incorporate grading, 
drainage, utilities and associated paving. It is the intent of the owner and all consultants 
to construct a quality project within the standards set by the City of McKinney for 
Building and Engineering Design. Project details are listed in detail below:

The subject property is 20.3 acres.
The subject property is currently zoned “BG” and “CC”.
The proposed use is a multi-family apartment complex.

Please call if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
CROSS ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC.

Bryan Weisgerber, P.E.
Project Engineer

CROSS ENGINEERINNNNNG GG CONSUL

Bryan Weisgerber P E

28



29



30



17-283SP2

Title: Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a Site Plan for Auto Repair 

and Sales (Da Shang Auto Sales and Repair), Located at the Northeast Corner of 

State Highway 5 (McDonald Street) and McMakin Street

Standard Conditions Checklist

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

Letter of Intent

Proposed Site Plan

Proposed Landscape Plan

TXDOT Acquisition Exhibit

Presentation

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:    

31



Standard Conditions for Site Plan Approval Checklist

The conditions listed below marked with a “ ” need to be satisfied by the applicant, prior to issuance 
of a building permit.

Approval of building permit plans by the Chief Building Official.

Approval of architectural building elevations, in accordance with Section 146-139 of the Zoning 
Ordinance.

Approval of grading and drainage plans by the City Engineer.

Approval of public improvement construction plans by the City Engineer.

Approval of utility construction plans by the City Engineer.

Approval of an associated record plat or minor plat if the property is currently unplatted.

Final location of fire hydrants be subject to review and approval by the Fire Marshal.

The applicant comply with the requirements of the Tree Preservation Ordinance and obtain any 
necessary tree permits within the time frames specified within the Ordinance, subject to review and 
approval by the City Arborist.

Payment of impact fees in accordance with Ordinances 2017-02-021 (utilities) and 2013-11-108
(roadway), or as specified within an approved facilities agreement or development agreement.

The applicant satisfy park land dedication obligations, in accordance with Article VI of the Subdivision 
Ordinance, subject to review and approval by the Director of Parks and Recreation.

All signage is to comply with the current Sign Ordinance of the City of McKinney, and as amended.  
Final location of all signage, as well as the dimension and construction specifications, be subject to 
review and approval by the Chief Building Official, under separate permit.

Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (C.O.):

The applicant provide any additional easements as determined necessary by the City Engineer.

The associated plat for the subject property be filed for record with the County Clerk.

32



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 171 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 S
:\M

CK
GI

S\
No

tifi
ca

tio
n\D

ev
_S

erv
ice

s_
No

tifi
ca

tio
n_

Ma
p.m

xd

MCMAKIN

MCDONALD

TE
NN

ES
SE

E

CA
RR

IN
GT

ON

CENTER

DORSEY

FRANKLIN

CH
ES

TN
UT

BN

MP

PD

BG

BG
BG

RS-60

ML

PD

PD

C3

RS-60

Source: City of McKinney GIS
Date: 3/13/2018 

0 80 160
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Notification Map
17-0283SP

200' Buffer
33



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 171 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 S
:\M

CK
GI

S\
No

tifi
ca

tio
n\D

ev
_S

erv
ice

s_
No

tifi
ca

tio
n_

Ma
p.m

xd

MCMAKIN

MCDONALD

TE
NN

ES
SE

E

CA
RR

IN
GT

ON

CENTER

DORSEY

FRANKLIN

CH
ES

TN
UT

BN

MP

PD

BG

BG
BG

RS-60

ML

PD

PD

C3

RS-60

Source: City of McKinney GIS
Date: 3/13/2018 

0 80 160
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Notification Map
17-0283SP

200' Buffer
34



October 2, 2017 REVISED February 27, 2018 REVISED March 9, 2018 REVISED April 12, 2018 rev 

April 20, 2018 


LETTER OF INTENT 


City of McKinney Planning Department 

221 N. Tennessee St. 

McKinney, Texas 75069 


RE: 

Site Plan for Da Shang Motors, LLC 

car Sales and Repair lot to be located at: 

1513 South McDonald Street 

McKinney, Texas 75069 


To Whom It May Concern: 


The property is located at the northeast comer of South McDonald Street and McMakin Street 

The property is described ~s Lot 1, Block 1 of Carolyn's East Addition with a total area of 0.4552 acre. 

The Zoning Is Existing BG. 

The proposed site use is Automobile Sales and Repair. Includes a 400 s.f. office area and 400 s.f. of 

2nd floor un-air conditioned storage with 3 bays for a total area of 2,150 s.f. 

Construction will be completed in one phase. 


Special considerations: 

Due to the small, triangular shape of the property, th'e location of the lot at the corner of McDonald and 

McMakin Streets requested considerations include: 


1. Request that the bay doors be allowed to face the right of way of McDonald Street since no space is 
available to orient the bay doors away from the right of way of either street. 
2. Request that the landscape buffer be reduced to 10' all around due to size and shape of lot. 
3. Request living screen for bay door screening to be planted in the landscape buffer of McDonald 
Street. 
4. Request living screen of one small HVAC equipment I:Jnit 
5. Request living screen for overnight storage parking spaces. 

JUSTIFICATION NOTES: DUE TO THE LOCATION AND SIZE OF THE SITE AT THE CORNER OF 
MCDONALD STREET AND MCMAKIN STREET AND THE SHAPE OF THE SITE, BAY DOORS ARE 
NOT ABLE TO BE ORIENTED AWAY FROM THE RIGHT OF WAY O,F EITHER MCDONALD STREET 
OR MCMAKIN STREET. 
BAY DOOR SCREENING TO BE LIVING SCREEN AS A SOLID MASNORY WALL WOULD NOT BE 
IN A GOOD PLACE NEXT TO THE RIGHT OF WAY OF MCDONALD STREET AND WOULD NOT 
MATCH THE ASTHETICS OF THE AREA. 
THE LANDSCAPE BUFFER AT 20 FEET WOULD MAKE THE,SITE'UNUSABLE DUE TO THE SIZE 
AND SHApE OF THE LOT. SO REQUESTING 10 LANDSCAPE BUFFER. 

Requesting to have this site plan item be placed on the agenda.soonest available date. 

Sincerely, ' 

tt/t~$:~ 
Sherry Geer Williams, representing Da Shang Motors LLC, Dian Xiang Zhang, Owner. 

Geer Surveying & Engineering, 1101 West University Drive, McKinney, Texas 75069, 972-562-3959, 

sherrykw@sbcglobal.net 


35



36



37



38



17-283SP

Da Shang Auto Sales and Service 
Site Plan

39



Location Map

40



Aerial Exhibit

41



Proposed Site Plan

42



Proposed Landscape Plan

43



Proposed TXDOT Acquisition

44



18-0040Z

Title: Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a Request to Rezone the 

Subject Property from "C" - Planned Center District, "RG-18" - General 

Residence District and "CC" - Corridor Commercial Overlay District to "PD" - 

Planned Development District and "CC" - Corridor Commercial Overlay District, 

Generally to Allow Commercial and Multi-Family Residential Uses (Millennium 

Place), Located Approximately 830 Feet West of Hardin Boulevard and on the 

North Side of U.S. Highway 380 (University Drive) (REQUEST TO BE TABLED)

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:    

45



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 485 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 Y:
\P

lan
nin

g\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

.m
xd

BUCHANAN

HA
RD

IN

BO
IS

 D
'A

RC

EDWARD

AN
NA

TAFT

GREGORY

UNIVERSITY

JEANETTE

EIS
EN

HO
WER

RG-18

PD

PD

PD

ML PD

C

BG

BG

PD

PD

PD

PD PD

PD
PD

PD

PD
PD

PD

PD

PD

PD PD

PD PDPD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PDPD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PDPD

PD

PD

PD

PD

C3

AG

AG

PD

C2

C2

C2

C2

C3

0 240 480
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Notification Map
18-0040Z

46



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 485 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 Y:
\P

lan
nin

g\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

.m
xd

BUCHANAN

HA
RD

IN

BO
IS

 D
'A

RC

EDWARD

AN
NA

TAFT

GREGORY

UNIVERSITY

JEANETTE

EIS
EN

HO
WER

RG-18

PD

PD

PD

ML PD

C

BG

BG

PD

PD

PD

PD PD

PD
PD

PD

PD
PD

PD

PD

PD

PD PD

PD PDPD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PDPD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PDPD

PD

PD

PD

PD

C3

AG

AG

PD

C2

C2

C2

C2

C3

0 240 480
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Notification Map
18-0040Z

47



18-0052FR

Title: Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a Façade Appeal for a 

Retail Building (380 and Ridge Retail Building), Located Approximately 300 Feet 

East of Ridge Rd and on the South Side of U.S. Highway 380 (University Drive) 

(REQUEST TO BE TABLED)

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:    

48



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 255 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 S
:\M

CK
GI

S\
No

tifi
ca

tio
n\D

ev
_S

erv
ice

s_
No

tifi
ca

tio
n_

Ma
p.m

xd

RI
DG

E

UNIVERSITY

C

PD

PD

BG AG

SF5
C2PD

Source: City of McKinney GIS
Date: 5/10/2018 

0 125 250
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Notification Map
FACADE2018-0052

200' Buffer
49



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 255 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 S
:\M

CK
GI

S\
No

tifi
ca

tio
n\D

ev
_S

erv
ice

s_
No

tifi
ca

tio
n_

Ma
p.m

xd

RI
DG

E

UNIVERSITY

C

PD

PD

BG AG

SF5
C2PD

Source: City of McKinney GIS
Date: 5/10/2018 

0 125 250
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Notification Map
FACADE2018-0052

200' Buffer
50



18-0003SUP

Title: Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on a Specific Use Permit 

Request for a Restaurant with Drive-Through Window (Shops at Lake Forest), 

Located Approximately 300 Feet West of Lake Forest Drive and on the South 

Side of Collin McKinney Parkway

Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

Letter of Intent

Proposed SUP Exhibit

Presentation

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:    

51



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 323 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 Y:
\P

lan
nin

g\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

.m
xd

SANGRIA

AMPHORA

HAMPSHIRE

BUCKLAND

AT
WO

RT
H

COLLIN MCKINNEY

WESTPORT

SHORE CREST

MC
KI

NN
EY

 H
OL

LO
W

GREAT WORTH

NE
W

BR
ID

GE

RU
SH

DE
N SA

GU
AR

O

LA
KE

FO
RE

ST

CR
AW

FO
RD

CHATBURN

KE
LL

Y

MAGNUMRIPASSO

WI
TT

EN
 PA

RK

VALLIANCE

OAKLEY

OX
TE

N

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

SF5

PD

PD

PD
C1

PD

TH

C1C1 C1

C1

0 160 320
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Notification Map
18-0003SUP

52



DISCLAIMER: This map and
information contained in it were
developed exclusively for use
by the City of McKinney.  Any
use or reliance on this map by
anyone else is at that party's risk
and without liability to the City of
McKinney, its officials or employees
for any discrepancies, errors,
or variances which may exist.

1 in = 323 ft

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 Y:
\P

lan
nin

g\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

s\L
oc

ati
on

 M
ap

.m
xd

SANGRIA

AMPHORA

HAMPSHIRE

BUCKLAND

AT
WO

RT
H

COLLIN MCKINNEY

WESTPORT

SHORE CREST

MC
KI

NN
EY

 H
OL

LO
W

GREAT WORTH

NE
W

BR
ID

GE

RU
SH

DE
N SA

GU
AR

O

LA
KE

FO
RE

ST

CR
AW

FO
RD

CHATBURN

KE
LL

Y

MAGNUMRIPASSO

WI
TT

EN
 PA

RK

VALLIANCE

OAKLEY

OX
TE

N

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

PD

SF5

PD

PD

PD
C1

PD

TH

C1C1 C1

C1

0 160 320
Feet´

Subject
Property

¬«121

¬«121

¬«5

£¤75
£¤380

Vicinity Map

Notification Map
18-0003SUP

53



54



(
1
2
0
' 
R

.O
.W

.)

C
O

L
L
IN

 M

C
K

IN
N

E
Y

 P
A

R
K

W

A
Y

W

E
S

T
P

O
R

T
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
6
0
'
 
R

I
G

H

T

-
O

F

-
W

A

Y

)

(
1
2
0
' 
R

.O
.W

.)

C
O

L
L
IN

 M

C
K

IN
N

E
Y

 P
A

R
K

W

A
Y

W

E
S

T
P

O
R

T
 
D

R
I
V

E

(
6
0
'
 
R

I
G

H

T

-
O

F

-
W

A

Y

)

NOTES:

1. EXISTING TOPOGRAPHY BASED ON SURVEY PREPARED BY
ARTHUR SURVEYING CO., INC, DATED 09/06/2016.

2. HVAC EQUIPMENT WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED AND
SCREENED.

County

22' -  1 STORY

1.785 ACRES   77,748 SQ FT

14,940 S.F. (TOTAL)

Regular

14,940/77,748 S.F. = 0.19:2

Handicap

14,940 S.F. / 77,748 S.F.  = 19.2%

Total

RETAIL/RESTAURANT

Building Height:

Parking  Provided:

Lot Coverage:

Project Name

Site Area:

Parking  Required:

Floor Area Ratio:

Building Area

Zoning District

Proposed use

Impervious Area:

Pervious Area:

SHOPS AT LAKE FOREST

C1 LOCAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 

COLLIN

= 71 SPACES

=  4 SPACES

= 75 SPACES

58,814 SF OR 58,814/77,748 = 75.6%

 18,934 SF OR 18,934/77,748 = 24.4%

RETAIL 1/250 SF =  9,940 SF/250                             = 40 SPACES

TOTAL REQ = 74 SPACES

SITE

S

A

M

 

R

A

Y

B

U

R

N

 

T

O

L

L

W

A

Y

C

O

L

L

I

N

 

M

C

K

I

N

N

E

Y

P

A

R

K

W

A

Y

REST 1/150 SF =  5,000 SF/150                             = 34 SPACES

LEGEND
EXISTING PROPOSED

PROPERTY LINE

PAVEMENT

PARKING COUNT

FIRE LANE

SIDEWALK

HIKE & BIKE TRAIL

STACKING SPACES

10

CITY SITE PLAN NOTES

 1. SANITATION CONTAINER SCREENING WALLS WILL BE BRICK MASONRY, STONE
    MASONRY, OR OTHER ARCHITECTURAL MASONRY FINISH, INCLUDING A METAL
    GATE, PRIMED AND PAINTED, AND THE SANITATION CONTAINER SCREENING
    WALLS, GATE, AND PAD SITE WILL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
    THE CITY'S DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS.
 2. MECHANICAL AND HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING EQUIPMENT IN
    NON-RESIDENTIAL USES SHALL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW FROM THE PUBLIC
    RIGHT-OF-WAY AND FROM ADJACENT RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES.
 3. LIGHTING FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY WILL BE CONSTRUCTED AND
    OPERATED IN CONFORMANCE WITH CHAPTER 58 OF THE CITY OF McKINNEY
    CODE OF ORDINANCES.

10'x 20'

S
P

E
C

I
F

I
C

 
U

S
E

 
P

E
R

M
I
T

SUP

v
a

s
q

u
e

z
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r

in
g

 
L

.L
.C

.

1
9

1
9

 
S

.
 
S

h
i
l
o

h
 
R

o
a

d

S
u

i
t
e

 
4

4
0

.
 
L

B
 
4

4

G
a

r
l
a

n
d

,
 
T

e
x
a

s
 
7

5
0

4
2

P
h

:
 
9

7
2

-
2

7
8

-
2

9
4

8

T
X

 
R

e
g

i
s
t
r
a

t
i
o

n
 
#

 
F

-
1

2
2

6
6

O
W

N
E

R
/
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
E

R

L
A

K
E

 
F

O
R

E
S

T
 
T

R
A

D
E

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
,
 
L
L
C

1
3
3
5
9
 
G

R
A

Y
H

A
W

K
 
B

L
V

D

F
R

I
S

C
O

,
 
T

X
 
7
5
0
3
3

S
H

O
P

S
 
A

T
 
L

A
K

E
 
F

O
R

E
S

T

B
L

O
C

K
 
A

,
 
L

O
T

 
1

H
E

I
G

H
T

S
 
A

T
 
L

A
K

E
 
F

O
R

E
S

T
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

M
C

K
I
N

N
E

Y
,
 
C

O
L

L
I
N

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
 
T

E
X

A
S

T
H

I
S

 
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 
I
S

 
F

O
R

I
N

T
E

R
I
M

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
A

N
D

 
I
S

N
O

T
 
I
N

T
E

N
D

E
D

 
F

O
R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
,
 
P

E
R

M
I
T

T
I
N

G

O
R

 
B

I
D

D
I
N

G
 
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S

J
U

A
N

 
J
.
 
V

A
S

Q
U

E
Z

,
 
P

.
E

.

T
E

X
A

S
 
N

O
.
 
8

5
8

5
2

D
A

T
E

D
 
0

5
/
0

1
/
2

0
1

8

V
A

S
Q

U
E

Z
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
,
 
L

.
L

.
C

.

T
X

 
R

E
G

.
 
F

-
1

2
2

6
6

55

dquintan
Text Box
1



18-0003SUP

Shops at Lake Forest
Specific Use Permit

56



Location Map

57



Aerial Exhibit

58



Proposed Specific Use Permit Exhibit

59



60



18-006M

Title: Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on the Semiannual Report with 

Respect to the Progress of the Capital Improvements Plan for Roadway and Utility 

Impact Fees

Project List Mid-Year 2018

Presentation

SUPPORTING MATERIALS:    

61



 
 

Active Roadway and Utility Impact Fee CIP Projects 
2017-2018 MID-YEAR 

 
Includes: 

Roadway Impact Fee CIP Projects Map 
Utility Impact Fee CIP Projects Map 

Project Summary Sheets* 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*Project Summary Sheets are included for completed and active CIP projects for which 
impact fees have been utilized and/or allocated during this fiscal year. Completed projects 
may be shown for those that were closed out during the current fiscal year. 
 

62



Eldorado Parkway

Co
it R

oa
d

State Highway 121

1111

Ha
rdi

n B
ou

lev
ard

Sta
te 

Hig
hw

ay
 5

Fannin Road

2

36

7

8

99

10

11

12
9

555

4

1

A B

C D

E F

G

H

I

J

K L

M

¯

ACTIVE ROADWAY IMPACT FEE PROJECTS (FY 2017 - 2018)

0 21
Miles As of 3/31/2018

Legend
Roadway Projects FY 2017-2018
Existing and Future Thoroughfares

63



Air
po

rt D
riv

eCu
ste

r R
oa

d

US Highway 380

Ri
dg

e R
oa

d
Wilmeth Road

US
 H

igh
wa

y 7
5

Ha
rdi

n B
ou

lev
ard

La
ke

 Fo
res

t D
riv

e

St
on

eb
rid

ge
 D

riv
e

Eldorado Parkway

Bloomdale Road

Virginia Parkway

Co
it R

oa
d

FM 1461

Sta
te 

Hig
hw

ay
 5

Old Mill Road

State Highway 121

Alm
a D

riv
e

White Avenue

Collin McKinney Parkway

Virginia Street

Co
mm

un
ity

 Av
en

ue

Fannin Road

Glen Oaks Drive

18

17

1616

15

14

13

¯

ACTIVE UTILITY IMPACT FEE PROJECTS (FY 2017-2018)

0 21
Miles As of 3/31/2018

Legend

Existing and Future Thoroughfares
Utility Projects FY 2017-2018

64



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST1231 1

Estimated
Completion

Feb-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             1,550,000  $             1,791,124  $                878,876 4,220,000$              

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   

 GRAND TOTAL 

4,220,000$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

36.73%

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

VIRGINIA PKWY LANES 5 & 6

Project
Description

Construct lanes 5 & 6 in the median of Virginia Pkwy from Ridge Rd to Bellegrove Dr.

65



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST1232 2

Estimated
Completion

Sep-2018

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                700,000  $                622,274 1,322,274$              

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   

 GRAND TOTAL 

1,322,274$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

52.94%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

FM 546 RECONTSTRUCTION

Project
Description

Construction of the new alignment for FM 546 from SH5 to the McKinney National 
Airport. The project will construct 4 lanes of the Ultimate 6-lane roadway.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

66



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST1612 3

Estimated
Completion

Jun-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                350,000  $             1,550,000  $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   1,900,000$              

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   

 GRAND TOTAL 

1,900,000$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

18.42%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

REDBUD LANES 3 & 4

Project
Description

Construct Lanes 3 & 4 from Bloomdale Rd. to McLarry Dr.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

67



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST1614 4

Estimated
Completion

Jun-2018

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             2,150,000  $                         -    $                         -    $                123,504 -$                        2,273,504$             

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                         $                         -    $                         -   -$                        

 GRAND TOTAL 

2,273,504$             

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

94.57%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations 
from other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

MCKINNEY RANCH PKWY

Project
Description

Adding 2 lanes and reconstruct McKinney Ranch Pkwy from Hardin Blvd to US 75.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

68



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST1618 5

Estimated
Completion

May-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                500,000  $             2,500,000  $                         -    $                         -   -$                        3,000,000$             

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                         $                         -    $                         -   -$                        

 GRAND TOTAL 

3,000,000$             

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

16.67%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations 
from other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

VARIOUS ARTERIAL CAPACITY IMPROVEMENTS

Project
Description

Capacity improvements to intersections located at US 380 & Hardin Blvd, Westridge 
Blvd & Custer Rd, and Virginia Pkwy & Ridge Rd.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

69



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST1718 6

Estimated
Completion

TBD

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             1,000,000  $             1,000,000  $                         -    $                         -   -$                        2,000,000$             

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                         $                         -    $                         -   -$                        

 GRAND TOTAL 

2,000,000$             

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

50.00%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations 
from other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

STONEBRIDGE DRIVE

Project
Description

Construct Stonebirdge Drive from US 380 to Wilson Creek (Participation on Developer 
Project)

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

70



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST3211 7

Estimated
Completion

Jun-2018

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             2,300,000  $                         -    $                         -    $                         -   -$                        2,300,000$             

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                         $                         -    $                         -   -$                        

 GRAND TOTAL 

2,300,000$             

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

100.00%

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations 
from other projects.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

Project
Description

Construct lanes 5 and 6 in the median of Hardin Blvd from SH 121 to McKinney Ranch 
Pkwy.

Project
Name

HARDIN BLVD LANES 5 & 6

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

71



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST4227 8

Estimated
Completion

Aug-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                150,000  $             6,350,000  $             4,000,000  $                         -   -$                        10,500,000$           

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                         $                         -    $                         -   -$                        

 GRAND TOTAL 

10,500,000$           

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

1.43%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations 
from other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

BLOOMDALE RD

Project
Description

Extension of Bloomdale Rd from Hardin Blvd to Community Ave with a 4-lane divided 
roadway.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

72



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST4231 n/a

Estimated
Completion

Jan-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                150,000  $                         -    $                         -   -$                        150,000$                

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                         $                         -    $                         -   -$                        

 GRAND TOTAL 

150,000$                

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

100.00%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations 
from other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

ROADWAY IMPACT FEE UPDATE 2018

Project
Description

Update to Roadway Impact Fee Study

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

73



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST4372 9

Estimated
Completion

Sep-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             1,000,000  $                500,000  $                         -    $                         -   -$                        1,500,000$             

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                         $                         -    $                         -   -$                        

 GRAND TOTAL 

1,500,000$             

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

66.67%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations 
from other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

COUNTRY LANE EXTENSION

Project
Description

Extend existing Country Lane to the new FM 546 roadway.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

74



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

ST9115 10

Estimated
Completion

Sep-2020

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                600,000  $             2,700,000  $             1,250,000  $                  59,824  $                          -    $             4,609,824 

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -    $             4,000,000  $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $             4,000,000 

 GRAND TOTAL 

8,609,824$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

6.97%

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

Funding Sources
(Thru Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

CUSTER ROAD (DESIGN)

Project
Description

Design study for the future widening of the road to four lanes (ultimately six lanes 
generally between US 380 and FM 1461) and realignment at the north end near FM 
1461. 

75



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

FA4408 n/a

Estimated
Completion

N/A

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                120,000  $                          -    $                          -    $                  30,000  $                          -    $                150,000 

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   

 GRAND TOTAL 

150,000$                 

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

80.00%

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

COLLIN MCKINNEY PKWY PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP 
(ACQUISITIONS)

Project
Description

Participate with private developer in cost-sharing for the acquisition of right-of-way and 
easements associated with the construction of Collin McKinney Pkwy between Stacy 
Rd and Village Park Dr.

76



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

TR1620 11

Estimated
Completion

Dec-2018

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                300,000  $                650,000  $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                950,000 

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                142,836  $                          -    $                142,836 

 GRAND TOTAL 

1,092,836$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

27.45%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION CONSTRUCTION

Project
Description

New signals at the intersections of Independence Pkwy & Westridge Blvd, Hardin Blvd 
& Winding Brook Dr, Custer Rd & Silverado Trl, and Ridge Rd & Habersham.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

77



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

TR1702 12

Estimated
Completion

Dec-2018

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                300,000  $                  50,000  $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                350,000 

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   

 GRAND TOTAL 

350,000$                 

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

85.71%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Roadway Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

TRAFFIC SIGNAL CONSTRUCTION - SILVERADO AND 
CUSTER

Project
Description

Traffic Signal Construction at Silverado and Custer

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

78



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

WA0210 13

Estimated
Completion

Dec-2020

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                800,000  $                          -    $                          -   -$                         800,000$                 

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             1,490,000 -$                          $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   1,490,000$              

 GRAND TOTAL 

2,290,000$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

100.00%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Water/Wastewater Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

INDEPENDENCE PARKWAY 24 INCH WATER LINE

Project
Description

Design and construct of a 2,800 LF of 24 inch Water Main along Independence 
Parkway south of US 380.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

79



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

WA4226 14

Estimated
Completion

Jun-2018

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                  85,000  $                280,000  $                          -    $                          -   -$                         365,000$                 

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                          $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   -$                         

 GRAND TOTAL 

365,000$                 

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

23.29%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Water/Wastewater Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

CLUB LAKE 8 INCH WATER LINE LOOP

Project
Description

Design and construct secondary water source to area

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

80



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

WA4340 15

Estimated
Completion

May-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             1,300,000  $             5,935,000  $                          -    $                          -   -$                         7,235,000$              

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                          $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   -$                         

 GRAND TOTAL 

7,235,000$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

17.97%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Water/Wastewater Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

BLOOMDALE PUMP STATION LINE (850 PP)

Project
Description

6,900 LF of 42 inch water line, 1,300 LF of 54 inch water line, and 450 LF of 54 inch 
water line from the Bloomdale Rd Pump Station Site to Hardin Blvd along Bloomdale 
Rd.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

81



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

WA4415 16

Estimated
Completion

May-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             3,200,000  $             1,535,000  $                          -    $                          -   -$                         4,735,000$              

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                          $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   -$                         

 GRAND TOTAL 

4,735,000$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

67.58%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Water/Wastewater Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

US380 WATERLINE IMPROVEMENT

Project
Description

Constructing a master planned 24" waterline and replacing the existing water lines.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

82



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

WA8132 17

Estimated
Completion

Jun-2019

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             2,700,000  $           24,700,000  $                          -    $                          -   -$                         27,400,000$            

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                          -   -$                          $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   -$                         

 GRAND TOTAL 

27,400,000$            

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

9.85%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Water/Wastewater Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

REDBUD PUMP STATION SITE

Project
Description

Construct a new water pump station & ground storage facility.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

83



CIP Project
Number

Map ID
Number*

WW4359 18

Estimated
Completion

Dec-2020

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $                800,000  $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   -$                         800,000$                 

 Impact Fees  Bonds**  Grants*** 
 Developer 
Contributions 

 Other****  TOTAL 

 $             1,890,000 -$                          $                          -    $                          -    $                          -   1,890,000$              

 GRAND TOTAL 

2,690,000$              

 % of Project 
Funded by 
Impact Fees 

100.00%

Funding Sources
(Future Years)

*Map ID numbers are indicated on map
**Bonds may include General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, or Revenue Bonds
***Grants  may include cost-sharing participation from county, regional, state, or federal sources
**** Other may include General Fund, Water Fund, Construction Fund Interest, or savings reallocations from 
other projects.

Active Water/Wastewater Improvement Plan 
Project Summary Sheet

Project
Name

STONEBRIDGE LIFT STATION

Project
Description

Decomissioning of an existing lift station and replacing with a 24" gravity trunk line.

Funding Sources
(Thru FY17-18)

84



(Mid‐Year	2017‐2018)
18‐006M

Impact	Fee	Semiannual	Report

85



 The Semiannual Report was last presented at the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting on December 12, 2017. 

 The Semiannual Report is required to:
– Report the progress of the Capital Improvements Plan
– Report any perceived inequities in the Capital Improvements Plan 
implementation

 The City of McKinney Semiannual Report includes:
– A summary of total Roadway and Utility Impact Fee funds collected, 
transferred, and available for capital improvement programs

– A list of capital improvement projects for which impact fees have been 
allocated

Semiannual Report 2017 ‐ 2018

86



 The Capital Improvements Plan used for the Semiannual Report was
adopted on November 19, 2013 (as part of the 2012‐2013 Impact
Fee Update) and amended February 13, 2017 (Utility CIP only)

 This is not the same as the City’s overall Capital Improvements
Program

 The Capital Improvements Plan for Impact Fees is:
– The adopted plan which identifies all capital improvements and
their costs for each service area, which are necessitated by the new
development in that service area for a period not to exceed 10
years, which are to be financed, in part, through the imposition of
roadway and utility impact fees.

Semiannual Report 2017 ‐ 2018

87



88



Roadway Impact Fees Fund Activity (FY 17‐18)

• Totals as of 3/31/2018
• YTD – Year to Date (includes funds for the fiscal year which is October 2017 to September 2018)
• LTD – Live to Date (includes balance funds from previous years)
• Allocated funds may exceed balance funds in cases where future fee revenue will fund a specific project
• As of October 1, 2013, interest earned on Roadway Impact Fee revenues is directly deposited into the 

Street Construction Fund

Zone
Beginning 

LTD Balance
YTD 

Revenues

YTD Project 
Transfers / 

Refunds
Balance 

LTD

Allocated to 
Future 

Projects
Available 

Funds LTD

A $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
B $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
C $357,063 $201,401 $0 $558,463 ($500,000) $58,463 
D $92,602 $1,045,229 $0 $1,137,830 ($1,300,000) ($162,170)
E $107,317 $626,237 $0 $733,554 $0 $733,554 
F $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
G $1,001,682 $125,162 $0 $1,126,843 ($500,000) $626,843 
H $438,512 $60,375 $0 $498,887 ($500,000) ($1,113)
I $3,279,348 $245,873 $0 $3,525,221 ($285,000) $3,240,221 
J $1,145,133 $11,559 $0 $1,156,692 ($585,000) $571,692 
K $89,658 $66,830 ($19,979) $136,509 $0 $136,509 
L $1 $0 $0 $1 $0 $1 
M $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

TOTAL $6,511,315 $2,382,665 ($19,979) $8,874,001 ($3,670,000) $5,204,001 

89



Roadway Impact Fees Collected

*as of 3/31/2018

*

90



91



Utility Impact Fees Fund Activity (FY 16‐17)

• Totals as of 3/31/2018
• “Water and Wastewater Fees Collected YTD” include fees collected within the Trinity Falls Municipal Utility District 
• YTD – Year to Date (includes funds for the fiscal year which is October 2017 to September 2018)
• LTD – Live to Date (includes balance funds from previous years)
• Allocated funds may exceed balance funds in cases where future fee revenue will fund future projects.

Utility Impact 
Fee Account

Beginning 
LTD 

Balance

Fees 
Collected 

YTD

Transfers out to 
Projects/Refunds 

YTD

Allocated to 
Future 

Projects
Available 

Funds LTD
Water $7,216,255 $1,310,122 ($804,772) ($7,450,000) $271,606 

Wastewater $2,199,025 $151,433 ($800,580) ($1,450,000) $99,877 
Total $9,415,280 $1,461,555 ($1,600,000) ($8,900,000) $371,483 

92



Utility Impact Fees Collected

*as of 9/30/2017

*

93



94



95


	Agenda
	18-450 - Agenda Item Master
	18-450 - Minutes

	18-0129CVP - Agenda Item Master
	18-0129CVP - Location Map and Aerial Exhibit
	18-0129CVP - Letter of Intent
	18-0129CVP - Proposed Conveyance Plat

	18-0090PF - Agenda Item Master
	18-0090PF - Standard Conditions Checklist
	18-0090PF - Location Map and Aerial Exhibit
	18-0090PF - Letter of Intent
	18-0090PF - Proposed Preliminary-Final Plat

	17-283SP2 - Agenda Item Master
	17-283SP2 - Standard Conditions Checklist
	17-283SP2 - Location Map and Aerial Exhibit
	17-283SP2 - Letter of Intent
	17-283SP2 - Proposed Site Plan
	17-283SP2 - Proposed Landscape Plan
	17-283SP2 - TXDOT Acquisition Exhibit
	17-283SP2 - Presentation

	18-0040Z - Agenda Item Master
	18-0040Z - Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

	18-0052FR - Agenda Item Master
	18-0052FR - Location Map and Aerial Exhibit

	18-0003SUP - Agenda Item Master
	18-0003SUP - Location Map and Aerial Exhibit
	18-0003SUP - Letter of Intent
	18-0003SUP - Proposed SUP Exhibit
	18-0003SUP - Presentation

	18-006M - Agenda Item Master
	18-006M - Project List Mid-Year 2018
	18-006M - Presentation


